
 
 

 
A G E N D A  

PLANNING COMMISSION 
November 20, 2023 at 6:30 PM 

 
Call to Order 

Consideration of Minutes 

1. PC-Minutes of September 18, 2023 

Disclosures and Recusals 

Tree Appeal 
 

Old Business 

New Business 

2. SITE PLAN: requesting to build a splash pad – 1401 Strand Ave. – 40008 
02016 – Zone C-1/SE -Brett Loehr. 

3. VARIANCE: requesting to move and keep Historic building in setback– 5 -7th 
Street – 40005 20009 – Zone R-2 -Brent Watts 

Discussions 

Adjournment 

 

- Page 1 -



 

 

  
 
PLANNING COMMISSION                          ACTING CITY MANAGER  
Julie A. Livingston                                        Michelle Owens 
Robert J. Matkowski 
Elaine McGruder 
S. Michelle Nooney                                                                                                            COMMUNITY DEVELOPMEN DIRECTOR 
Whitley Reynolds              George Shaw  
Marie Rodriguez          
Anthony Turpin                                         CITY ATTORNEY        

                                         Edward M. Hughes
                                                                                                                      

 
Planning Commission Meeting 

MINUTES 
September 18, 2023 

 
Chair Whitley Reynolds called the September 18, 2023, Tybee Island Planning Commission 
meeting to order. Commissioners present were Elaine McGruder, Robert Matkowski, Anthony 
Turpin, and Michelle Nooney. Julie Livingston and Marie Rodriguez were absent. 
 
Consideration of Minutes: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked for consideration of the May 15, 2023, meeting minutes. Elaine 
McGruder made a motion to approve. Michelle Nooney seconded. The vote to approve was 
unanimous. 
 
Disclosures/Recusals: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked if there were any Disclosures or Recusals. There were none. 
 
Old Business: 
Chair Whitley Reynolds asked if there was any old business. There was none. 
 
MINOR SUBDIVISION: requesting to subdivide into three lots – 5 Seventh 
Street-40005 20009-Zone R-2 -Brent Watts.  
George Shaw stated Mr. Watts purchased a large lot on Second Street and there is an old 
house on the property that Mr. Watts intends to move toward the beach and create two more 
lots. Since this submittal there has been one minor change that affects nothing as far as this 
body goes. Mr. Watts found out he owns the entrance to seventh lane which is easement, so 
he owns an additional 20 feet of the one lot. Staff recommends approval. Robert 
Matkowski referenced the trees that will be removed, asking where they are in reference to 
this property. George Shaw stated that will be established when this property gets 
developed. Brent Watts the applicant whose address is 2108 Drayton Street, Savannah, 
Georgia approached the Planning Commission and stated in regards to the tree question he 
thinks there will only be two palm trees that might have to be taken out to move the existing 
home. Mr. Watts asked George Shaw if the tree permit would be separate from this. 
George Shaw stated yes that will be addressed with the development of the lots. Mr. 
Watts stated his general plan is to keep as many trees as possible. Elaine McGruder 
made a motion to approve. Michelle Nooney seconded. The vote to approve was 
unanimous.   
 
VARIANCE: requesting to put steps in setback – 104 Seventeenth Street -40008 
18001- Zone C-1 -Walt Freeman. 
George Shaw stated Mr. Walt Freeman purchased this property at seventeenth and inlet and it has 
an existing historic home on it. Mr. Freeman was approved for a site plan to put in three more units 

 

- Page 2 -

Item #1.



 

 

and a pool. The existing home will be part of the new units. The existing home only has a single set of 
stairs in it and our ordinance requires a second set from the first elevated floor. He is requesting to 
have the second set wrap around above the pool deck and come back into the setback behind one of 
the new units. While our ordinance allows him to grant a stairway in a setback, it also implies that he 
is granted the least amount of excess as possible. As for the way this is situated, he does not think he 
can approve of this and that is why it is before the Planning Commission. Staff recommends denial. 
Kaylie Garrison, speaking on behalf of the applicant Walt Freeman approached the Planning 
Commission and stated one of the biggest reasons they are asking for the variance to be at the back of 
the property is if we turn this onto the pool deck it could be a danger to pedestrians to trip and fall 
and hit their head on the metal stairs. Or an unattended child could fall into the pool. So that is why 
this makes more sense to put the steps in the back. For this project we wanted to reduce the density 
and increase the green space. Elaine McGruder made a motion to approve. There was no second. 
Motion to approve failed. Anthony Turpin made a motion to deny. Michelle Nooney seconded. 
Persons voting for the motion to deny was Anthony Turpin, Michelle Nooney and Robert 
Matkowski. Voting against was Elaine McGruder. Motion to deny passed. 
 
VARIANCE: requesting to build in setback –18 Pulaski Street -40001 09003 -
Zone R-1– Jennifer Rutherford. 
George Shaw stated the applicant Jennifer Rutherford is requesting a variance to expand porches 
into the front setback. The front of the house sits in the front setback now. The applicant is proposing 
to build the porch out to the front post of the bottom porch and build a third deck above the two 
existing porches. The front of those porches will be in the front and side setback. The stairway coming 
down on the side of the building that she wants to add can be granted by staff as a second egress. 
There is no hardship for this property, so staff recommends denial. Anthony Turpin asked if staff 
could give a history on this property as to why it is in the setback. George Shaw stated he is not sure 
what the rules were in 2006 but when he talked with the designer of the home, he stated at the time 
this was built they considered it the back of the house and he did not mention any variances. George 
Shaw stated this home is in the R-1 district and that has a twenty-foot setback on the front and rear 
so that makes no sense at all how this got through. Right now, it is a duplex with one facing Dogwood 
and this one facing Pulaski. Jennifer Rutherford, who lives at 18 Pulaski Street approached the 
planning commission and stated her home was originally part of the enlisted men’s mess hall for Fort 
Screven. And looking down at the street you can see there are many structures sitting on the street as 
well as carports that come out to the street with porches over top of them. You can see that the 18 
Pulaski Street porch does not stick out any farther than the neighbor’s porch at 20 Pulaski Street. The 
porch would match up with the bump out the side porch that is not in the setback and will be 
approved because it’s allowable. What we are asking for is a section that’s approximately four feet 
wide to connect that side porch to the front porch because we’re having to put a second egress in from 
that floor. Everything she is asking for is either part of the ordinance now allowing for a second egress 
or in my current footprint. She stated she applied for a building permit for the rotten beams and rails 
that supported her porches. She stated she got a stop work order for not displaying a permit. I 
clarified with George Shaw that I had a building permit displayed, but it felt like it was just about the 
nosey neighbors complaining about construction. Bob Matkowski asked Jennifer Rutherford what 
was the original building permit for. Jennifer Rutherford started to replace the rotten beams. Bob 
Matkowski asked George Shaw if he recalled the building permit. George Shaw stated no, I don’t 
recall the date the permit was issued. Anthony Turpin asked George Shaw if she is required to have 
these egress stairs. George Shaw stated the Tybee Code requires two sets of stairs from an elevated 
level. The minimum size is what could be approved in the setback. Bob Matkowski made a motion 
to deny. Michelle Nooney seconded. The motion to deny was unanimous. 
 
 
Adjournment: 7:30pm 
Lisa L. Schaaf 

- Page 3 -

Item #1.



- Page 4 -

Item #2.



- Page 5 -

Item #2.



- Page 6 -

Item #2.



- Page 7 -

Item #2.



- Page 8 -

Item #2.



- Page 9 -

Item #2.



- Page 10 -

Item #2.



- Page 11 -

Item #2.



- Page 12 -

Item #2.



- Page 13 -

Item #2.



- Page 14 -

Item #2.



- Page 15 -

Item #2.



- Page 16 -

Item #2.



- Page 17 -

Item #2.



- Page 18 -

Item #2.



- Page 19 -

Item #2.



- Page 20 -

Item #2.



- Page 21 -

Item #2.



- Page 22 -

Item #3.



- Page 23 -

Item #3.



- Page 24 -

Item #3.



- Page 25 -

Item #3.



- Page 26 -

Item #3.



- Page 27 -

Item #3.



- Page 28 -

Item #3.



- Page 29 -

Item #3.



- Page 30 -

Item #3.



- Page 31 -

Item #3.



- Page 32 -

Item #3.



- Page 33 -

Item #3.



- Page 34 -

Item #3.



- Page 35 -

Item #3.


	Top
	Item #1.	PC-Minutes of September 18, 2023
	20230918_PC_MINUTES

	Item #2.	SITE PLAN: requesting to build a splash pad – 1401 Strand Ave. – 40008 02016 – Zone C-1/SE -Brett Loehr.
	1401 strand

	Item #3.	VARIANCE: requesting to move and keep Historic building in setback– 5 -7th Street – 40005 20009 – Zone R-2 -Brent Watts
	5 -7th st

	Bottom

